
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 
SAM NUNN 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STRFET 

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30303·R9fiO 

I,IUN 21 2011 

CERTIFlEll MAIL 
RETUR,i'l RECEIPT RE()UESTED 

ML Ronald Cooper 
Delta Foremost Chemical Corporation 
3915 Air Park Street 
Memphis, Tennessee 38l f 8 

SUBJECT: 	 Delta Foremos.t Chemical Corporation 
Consent Agret'"mcnt and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2011-2039(b) 

Dear Mr. Cooper: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy oftbe Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) that 
resolves the Emergency Plannjng and Community Right-to-Know }\ct of 1986 (EPCRA) matter 
(Docket No. EPCRA-04-2011-2039(b» involving Delta Fotemost Chemical Corporation. The 
CAFO was 1ilcd with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F .R, Part 22 and became 
elk-etive on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, please Gnu a copy of the ").Iotire of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty tu disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken by the Environmenlal Protection Agency (EPA). If you 
have any questions with regards to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may 
refer to the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

If you have any questio""_ please call Mr. Rubert Ilookman at (404) 562-9169. 

(r~~~
LnB. Falconer, Chief 
npCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

Internet Address (VAL) .. http:hWww,epa.gov 


~'fded'Recyellilble. Puted with Veyflllibir. O~ 8aseu !tk$ on Fleayclud ~ (Mlrimllm 30% PostoQnstlmar) 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGlON4 

I'l THE MA'ITER OF; ) ..' 
) 

Delta Foremost Chemlcal ) Docket Number; EPCRA-04-2011-20~b) • 
"'~, '­

-~CQrporation ) -.­
) 

Respondent, ) 
_~._._.J 

L tJature ofthc Action 

1. TIllS I::> a civil penally proceeding PllI3uant to Section 325 of the Emcrgl:ncy 
Planning and Community Rigbt-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 U's.c. § 11045, and pursuallt to the 
Consolidated Rules uf Practice Governing the Administrative Asse::>srnent of Civil Penalties and 
the RevocationiTennillation or Stl."ipension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 
40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics. Management 
Division, Region 4, i:jnited States Enviroruncntal Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is Delta 
Foremost Chemical Corporation, 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b) and desire lo resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore. without tlu.. taking of any evidence 01' 

testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue inlhis matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.P.R. § § 22.13(b) and 22.1S(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFOj will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

n. .e,reliminarv Statements 

3. The authority to take actiun under Section 325 of RPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11045, is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA ha::; delegated thi~ authority 
under EPCRA 10 the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22-3-A. dated May 11. 1994, 
The Regional Administrdtor, Region 4, has rede1cgaled this authority to the Director. Air, 
Pesticides and Toxics Management Division. by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22~3*A, dated 
November 8, 1994. Pursuant to that delegation, the Director of tht: Air. Pesticides and Toxies 
Management Division has the authority to commence an enfQrcement action as the Complainant 
in this maHer. 

4. Respondent is Delta Foremost Chernicaf Corporation, a corporation doing 
bu~incss in the State of Tennes~ec. 



5. Respondent is n "person" as delined in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 V.S.c. 
§ 11049(7), 

6. Respondent owns and operates a "facility" as that tenll is defined by Section 
329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 3915 Air Park Street, Mcmphis~ Tennessee. 

III. HPA'$ Alle&;!tions ofViolatiOlls 

Violations ofSectiQrL? 13 of RPCR.<\ 

8. Section 313 of EPCRA. 42 U,S,C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30, 
require the o,",ner or operator of a facility that (a) has 10 or more full-time employees; (b) is in a 
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) major group or industry listed in 40 C.P.R. § 372.23(a) 
for which the corresponding North American Industry ClassHication System (NAICS) subseclor 
and industry codes are listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.23(b) and 372.23( e)); and (c) manufactured, 
processed, or otherwise used a toxic chemical listed under Section 313(c) and in 40 C.F.R. § 
372.65, in excess of an applicable threshold quantity established under EPCRA Section 313(1) 
and set forth in 40 C,F.R. § 37225, during the calendar year. to complete and submit a toxic 
chemical release inventory reporting Form R (EPA Foml 935U~1) to the Admini"trator of EPA 
and to the State in whicb the facility is located, by July 1 for the preceding calendar year for each 
toxic chemical known by the o\\'"ner or o~rator to be manufactured, processed, or otherwise used 
in quantities exceeding the established threshold quantity during the preceding calendar year, 

9. As set fOlth at EPCR.'\ Section 313(1), 42 U,S,C. § 11023(1), and 40 C.P.R. 
§ 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for a toxic chemical manufactured or processed at a 
facility is 25,000 pounds per calendar year. The reporting threshold for a toxic chcrnical 
otherwise used at a facility is 10,000 pounds. 

10. Respondent has 10 or more fu1l-time employees, as defined at 40 CF.R § 372.3 
at its facility" 

11. Respondent's facility is classified under the SIC code 2869 and the NAICS 
code 32S199. 

12. Respondt.'Ut's facility is classified in a covered SIC code as described at 
40 c.~'.R. § 372.22 and in a covered NA1CS code as described at 40 C.F,R, § 372.23. 

13. Methanol and certain glYCOl ethers arc toxic chemicals listed under EPCRA 
Section 313(e) and 40 C,F.R. § 372.65. 

14. Respondent's facility processed the toxic chemicals methanol and certain glycol 
ethers in excess onhc 25,000 pound threshold quantity established under EPCR.'" Scction 313(t) 
and 40 C.F.R. 372.25, during calendar year 2008. 
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] 5. Respondent tailed to submit in a timely manner a Fonn R or Form A for methanol 
and certain glycol ethers to the Administrator nfEPA and to the oJlicial designated by the 
Governor ofl1lC Stale of Tennessee by July 1 of the required reporting year, 

16. Rcspondenl violated the reporting requirements of Section 313 ofEPCRA.. 
42 U,S,c. § 11023, at 11S facility for calendar year 2008, and is therefore sUbject to the 
assessment of penallics under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 UO.SO.CO § 11045. 

17. Pursuant to Section 325«) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and 40 C.F.R. 
Part 19, EPA may ass«s a penalty nInot more than $37,500 for each violation ofScction 313 
that occurred after January 12, 2009, Each day a violation of Section 313 constitutes a separate 
violation. Civil penalties under Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b), may be 
as:-ressed by Administrative Order, 

IV. Consent Agreerrtel1~, 

] 8. For the purposes of this CAFO. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

19. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order a\.:companying the Consent Agreement. 

20. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAFO. 

21. Respondent certifies tbat as of the date of its execution of this: C4..FO, it is in 
corupHance with ail relevant requirements of EPCRA at the facility. 

22. CompJianee with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the Unite.d States 
othcr than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent ior a violation of &ly federal or state statute. regulation 
or permit; to initiate an action for -imminent and substantial endangcnnent; or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

23. Cumplainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
C AFO. The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistenl 'tvith the applicable requirements ofEPCRA. 

V. Final Qrder 

24. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of THIRTEEN THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED TEN DOLLARS ($\3,510) (plus $73.29 interest), for lhe violations alleged in 
SectiDn III. Payment shall be paid in twelve (12) consecutive monthly payments with the fir:;lt 
payment of ,1.131.94 to be paid within 30 days of receipt ofIbe rntified CAFO: 
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1st payment due 30 days $1,131.94 
2nd payment due 60 days $1,131.94 
3rd payment due 90 days $1,131.94 
4th payment due 120 days $1,131.94 
5th payment due 150 days $1,131,94 
6th payment due 180 days $U31.94 
7th payment due 210 days $1,131,94 
8th payment due 240 days $1,131,94 
9th payment due 270 days $1,131.94 
IOlh payment due 300 days $1,131,94 
11th payment due 330 days $1,131.94 
12th payment due 360 days $1,131,94 

25. RespOlldcnt shall pay the EPCRA penalty hy forwarding a cashler' 5 or ccrtilied 
check, payable to: "Treasurer~ United States of America," to one of the foUowing addresses: 

Bv Mail,; By O\'cr:nigbt; 
U,S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S, Hank 
Fines and Penalties 1005 Convention Plaza 
Cincinnati Finance Center Mail Station SL-MO-C2Gl. 
P,O, Box 979077 81. Louis, Missouri 63101 
St uno" Missouri 63197-9000 

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

26. At the time of payment, Respondent shaH send a separate copy ofthe clu."Ck, and a 
'JrTitten statement that payment has been made in acrordallo; with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S, W, 
Atlanta, Gwrgia 30303 

Andrew Porter 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Fon:yth Street, S,W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wi Ison 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
Ofticc ofEnvironmenl<U Accountability 
61 Forsyth Slreet, S. W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 303U3 
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27. If Respondent fails to make one of the installment payments in accordance with 
the schedule set forth above, and if such payment is not made within 30 days after the due date, 
then payment plus all subsequent payments (the entire unpaid balance) and all accrued interest 
shall become immediately due and payable on the 3 i st day from such dw: date. In addition, 
Respondent shall be liable for and shall pay administrative handling charges and l.te payment 
penalty charges as described below in the event of any such failure or default. 

28. Furtber, if Respondent fails to puy the installment payments in accordance with 
the schedule set forth above, EPA may refcr the debt to 0. collection agency, a credit reporting 
agency. or to the .Department of Justice for filing ofa coUection action in the appropriate United 
St'ltes District Court. In ally such collection action. the validity, arnount. and approprialeness of 
the assessed penalty and of this CAFO shall not be subject to review. 

29. Notwithstanding Respondent!s agreement to pay the assessed civil penalty in 
accord.ance with the inmallment schedule set forth above, Respondent may pay the entire clvH 
penalty 0[$13,510 within thirty (30) calendar daysaftertbcdate on which a copy of this CAFO 
is mailed or hand~delivered to Respondent and, thereby. avoid the payment of interest pursuant 
to 40 c.P.R. § 13.11(a). In addition, Respondent may, at any time afieroonunencement of 
payments under the in~talImcnt schedule, elect to pay the entire principal balance remaining, 
together with interest accrued up to the date ofsuch full payment. 

30. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. EVA is entitled to as,ess 
interest and penalties on debt::; owed to the United States and a chrJrge to cover the cost of 
processing and handling a delinquent claim. In accordance with 40 CJ:,'.R § 13.11 (a), interest on 
any civil pcmthy assessed in a CAPO begins to ac-crue on tbe date that a copy of the CAPO is 
mailed or hand-delivered to the Respondent. However, EPA will not seck to recover interest on 
any amount of such civil penalty that 1.<; paid within thirry (30) calendar days after the date on 
wruc·h such interest begins to accrue. Interest will be assessed at the rate Qi'tbe United States 
Trea.<;ury litx and loan rate in accordance with 40 C.r-,R. § 13,11(a). A charge ..vitI also be 
assessed to cover the administrative cost!;., both direct and indirect, of overdue debts. In addition, 
a late payment penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not paid within 9{) days 
of the due date. 

31. For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
clltillcd, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deductiun for any civil pmalty paytnenl made 
pursuant to this CAFo. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 
con~1itute a violation of this CAFO. 

32. Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

33. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

34. The following individual is rllnhlJrized to receive !5Crvice for EPA in this 
proceeding; 
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Caron B. F atconer 
F.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-~451 

35. Each ooJersigned representative ofthe parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fuUy authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
pafty to it 

VI. Effective pate 

36. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the dllle upon which the CAFO is llkd 
with thl;" Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED A.'lD CONSENTED TO: 

Delta Foremost Chemical Corporation 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

l;.S. Environmental Protcdion Agency 

By: 

Mnnagement Divislon 

Region 4 


-d 
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this ._.2()~_~day of ~_~_, 2011. 

1~4,~
~chub 
Regional Judicial om:cer 
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C!,RTlfICATE OF SERVICE 

Ihereby certify that I have this day served a true and correL"i copy of the foregoing 

Number EPCRi\-04-2011-20:)2{b~ on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & TQxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. l::PA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
6J Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Ronald Cooper (Via Certified Mail - Return Receipt 
Delta Foremost Chemical Corp Requested) 
3915 Air Park Street 
Ylemphis, TN 381 18 

natelz -dL// 

Protection Agency. Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-951 1 
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EPA ACCOl!NTS RECBIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM 

!2 8£ COMP'LE1'W BY 1'lllIQBlGINAIING 0IIl!:E: 
{AtUdl_ copf oItbc liJDI arder HMltraaslDttllldlerto ~$pM""'" 	 { /' 

. I .....--...-.Saund1 Wilson 	 L /,11 ,­'ThiS _"'...._ ..~.___~_____	-::.~-,-_________ .,. vi ' , 

tNaD' ~ 

Region 4. ORC~ ORA 

AdmInistr;dht; OrdIrICoaseat A&m:wuIlo NO COLLl!CI'S rAYMJU<f 

OrwsiPt.....Cost PIebp rt _at: 
StItt witIl biI -... ­o o Not!ll!lltWitkbll 

o o OwadPtlli.lllal- C_h::kactaGI ",,_ed 

o o TlU ....madtl4.tkNl 

n.~k~Su~~N~___________________________ 

. 
~~A~~~~~'_____________________~'__________ 

11 you lta~.., quest., pldRalIt_ _ of !he Ftaaadai MahqttlM!Ut Setd. at: ~ 

DJBIlIBlJTJOI!; 

.\. JURICW. 01.OlRt- C'pits"tbk fMID ......,...CIP1 01 tM fRet,.. <If tile FINAL 1UDICL\l.OR.QR 
......DiWw 

I. Ell.. ..,W. " ~ l. 
L 

O.... t.uI:!t ...J.... IlM 1647 
P.Q. lIM: "'11. JeJ ~StadoIIt 

W' ,! I ..D.c. 111M 


